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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
\

BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
March 31,

2023 December 31, 2022
Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,739 $ 43,296 
Restricted cash 2,080 1,127 
Accounts receivable 16,462 10,877 
Short-term investments 135,209 150,740 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 13,708 12,086 

Total current assets 209,198 218,126 

Non-current assets:
Property and equipment, net 2,445 2,037 
Investment in joint venture 390 390 
Intangible assets, net 45,399 46,365 
Goodwill 39,890 39,445 
Operating right-of-use asset 24,092 17,692 
Other non-current assets 1,018 970 

Total assets $ 322,432 $ 325,025 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 11,389 $ 16,536 
Deferred revenue 7,788 6,709 
Operating lease liability, current 4,029 3,362 

Total current liabilities 23,206 26,607 

Non-current liabilities:
Warrant liability 6,517 7,083 
Operating lease liability, long-term 20,792 14,970 
Deferred tax liability 1,716 1,876 

Total liabilities 52,231 50,536 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 8)

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. No shares issued and

outstanding at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. — — 
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 400,000,000 authorized; 72,498,822 and 71,660,617 shares issued at March 31, 2023 and

December 31, 2022, respectively. 7 7 
Additional paid in capital 380,852 375,873 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,212 2,287 
Accumulated deficit (113,870) (103,678)

Total stockholders' equity 270,201 274,489 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 322,432 $ 325,025 

See Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2023 2022

Revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 

Operating expenses
Cost of revenue 38,107 23,707 
Software development 1,123 835 
General and administrative 16,257 13,978 
Selling and marketing 2,611 1,800 

Total operating expenses 58,098 40,320 

Loss from operations (12,827) (13,690)

Other non-operating income (expense)
Interest income, net 1,954 264 
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities 566 2,550 
Realized loss from sales of short-term investments (81) (136)

Total other non-operating income 2,439 2,678 

Loss before income taxes (10,388) (11,012)

Income tax benefit (196) — 

Net loss $ (10,192) $ (11,012)

Net loss per share (Note 7):
Basic $ (0.14) $ (0.16)

Diluted $ (0.14) $ (0.16)
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:

Basic 71,992,771 70,774,138 

Diluted 71,992,771 70,774,138 

See Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2023 2022

Net loss $ (10,192) $ (11,012)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
     Net unrealized investment income (losses) 29 (1,380)

Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included currently in net loss 51 136 
     Foreign currency translation adjustments for the period 845 241 
Other comprehensive income (loss) 925 (1,003)
Comprehensive loss $ (9,267) $ (12,015)

See Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Amount
Balances as of January 1,2023 71,660,617 $ 7 $ 375,873 $ 2,287 $ (103,678) $ 274,489 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options 300,785 — 54 — — 54 
Issuance of common stock upon settlement of restricted stock
units 159,875 — — — — — 
Stock-based compensation - restricted stock — — 3,221 — — 3,221 
Shares withheld related to net share settlement (7,211) — (81) — — (81)
Issuance of common stock for settlement of contingent
consideration (earn-out) 384,756 — 1,785 — — 1,785 
Other comprehensive income — — — 925 — 925 
Net loss — — — — (10,192) (10,192)
Balances as of March 31, 2023 72,498,822 $ 7 $ 380,852 $ 3,212 $ (113,870) $ 270,201 

Balances as of January 1,2022 70,667,381 $ 7 $ 368,680 $ (898) $ (76,418) $ 291,371 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options 115,103 — 21 — — 21 
Issuance of common stock upon settlement of restricted stock
units 65,965 — — — — — 
Stock-based compensation - restricted stock — — 2,098 — — 2,098 
Shares withheld related to net share settlement (2,813) — (5) — — (5)
Other comprehensive loss — — — (1,003) — (1,003)
Net loss — — — — (11,012) (11,012)
Balances as of March 31, 2022 70,845,636 $ 7 $ 370,794 $ (1,901) $ (87,430) $ 281,470 

See Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)
Three Months Ended March 31,

2023 2022
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss $ (10,192) $ (11,012)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash and restricted cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,652 1,145 
Stock-based compensation 3,221 2,098 
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities (566) (2,550)
Realized loss from sales of short-term investments 81 136 
Realized foreign exchange (gain)/loss 5 (5)
Accretion of interest income on held-to-maturity securities (1,386) — 
Deferred tax benefit (196) — 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,621) (1,705)
Accounts receivable (5,585) (465)
Other non-current assets (42) (648)
Operating right-of-use assets/lease liabilities 77 1 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,383) 2,636 
Deferred revenue 1,080 304 

Net cash used in operating activities (16,855) (10,065)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (646) (437)
Purchase of short-term investments (121) (265)
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 16,000 11,699 
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments (130,145) — 
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investments 131,187 — 

Net cash provided by investing activities 16,275 10,997 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from the exercise of common stock options 54 21 
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards (81) (5)

Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (27) 16 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash balances 3 3 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (604) 951 
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash - beginning 44,423 3,225 
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash - ending $ 43,819 $ 4,176 

Reconciliation to the unaudited interim condensed consolidated balance sheets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,739 $ 2,496 
Restricted cash 2,080 1,680 
Total $ 43,819 $ 4,176 

Non-cash investing and financing activities
New leases under ASC 842 entered into during the period $ 7,166 $ 415 

See Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(amounts in thousands, except share, per share data and exchange rates)

Note 1 – Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

Blade Air Mobility, Inc. (“Blade” or the “Company”), headquartered in New York, New York, is a technology-powered, global air mobility platform that provides consumers
with a cost effective and time efficient alternative to ground transportation for congested routes. Blade’s Passenger reporting segment arranges charter and by-the-seat flights
using helicopters, jets, turboprops, and amphibious seaplanes operating in various locations throughout the United States and abroad. Blade’s Medical reporting segment is one
of the largest air medical transporters of human organs in the United States, providing end-to-end logistics for transplant centers and organ procurement organizations utilizing
helicopters, jets, turboprops and ground vehicles. Blade’s platform utilizes an asset-light business model, providing transportation to its customers through a network of
contracted aircraft operators. Blade does not own or operate aircraft.

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required
by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. Management’s opinion is that all adjustments (consisting of normal accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have
been included. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2023 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2023. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and accompanying Notes included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Short-Term Investments

Held-to-Maturity Securities
The Company's investments in held-to-maturity securities consist of investment grade U.S. Treasury obligations with maturity dates of less than 365 days. The Company has the
ability and intention to hold these securities until maturity. Accordingly, these securities are recorded in the Company's unaudited interim condensed consolidated balance sheet
at amortized cost and interest is recorded within interest income on the Company's unaudited interim condensed consolidated statement of operations. The held-to-maturity
securities balance at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 was $130,700 and $130,382, respectively. The market value of the held-to-maturity securities at March 31, 2023
and December 31, 2022 was $130,834 and $130,352, respectively.

Other Short-Term Investments
Other short-term investments consist of highly-liquid investments available for sale. As of March 31, 2023, other short-term investments consisted of an available-for-sale,
traded, debt securities fund, which is recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported, net of tax, in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)”, unless
unrealized losses are determined to be unrecoverable. Realized gains and losses on the sale of securities are determined by specific identification. The Company considers all
available-for-sale securities as available to support current operational liquidity needs and, therefore, classifies all securities as current assets within short-term investments on
the Company’s unaudited interim condensed consolidated balance sheets. These other short-term investments are excluded from disclosure under “fair value of financial
instruments” due to the Net Asset Value practical expedient.  The other short-term investments balance at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 was $4,509 and $20,358,
respectively. The cost of other short-term investments at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 was $4,531 and $20,460, respectively.

Accounts Receivable and Allowances for Expected Credit Losses

Accounts receivable consists principally of amounts due from the Company’s MediMobility Organ Transport customers, which are large hospitals that receive terms for
payment. The allowance for expected credit losses on receivables is used to present accounts receivable, net at an amount that represents the Company’s estimate of the related
transaction price recognized as revenue. The allowance represents an estimate of expected credit losses over the lifetime of the receivables, even if the loss is considered remote,
and reflects expected recoveries of amounts previously written-off. We have determined our allowance for expected credit losses based on a specific evaluation of individual
receivables and an analysis
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(amounts in thousands, except share, per share data and exchange rates)

of past default experience for remaining receivables. We have historically not experienced significant losses on our receivables. We generally do not require customers to
provide collateral for purchases. During the three months ended March 31, 2023 we determined that no allowance for expected uncollectible accounts was required.

Emerging Growth Company

The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS
Act”), and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth
companies. These exemptions include, but are not limited to, not being required to comply with the independent registered public accounting firm attestation requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the
requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.

Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until
private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Exchange
Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period
and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company has elected to use such extended
transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an emerging
growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements with another public company that is not an emerging growth company or is an emerging growth company that has opted out of using the
extended transition period, difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience, current business factors, and various other assumptions that the Company
believes are necessary to consider to form a basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the recorded amounts of revenue and expenses, and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company is subject to uncertainties such as the impact of future events, economic and political factors, and changes in the
Company’s business environment; therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates. Accordingly, the accounting estimates used in the preparation of the Company’s
financial statements will change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the Company’s operating environment
evolves.

Changes in estimates are made when circumstances warrant. Such changes in estimates and refinements in estimation methodologies are reflected in reported results of
operations; if material, the effects of changes in estimates are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Significant estimates and assumptions by management include,
but are not limited to, the carrying value of long-lived assets, the fair value of intangible assets and goodwill, contingencies, the determination of whether a contract contains a
lease, the allocation of consideration between lease and nonlease components, the determination of incremental borrowing rates for leases and the provision for income taxes
and related deferred tax accounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards - Adopted

On January 1, 2023, we adopted ASU 2021-08, Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities From Contracts With Customers, or ASU 2021-08, that requires
acquiring companies to apply ASC 606 to recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers acquired in a business combination
consistent with those recorded by the acquiring company. The Company does not have significant contracts with customers requiring
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(amounts in thousands, except share, per share data and exchange rates)

performance beyond delivery. To the extent we acquire additional companies in our existing lines of business, the adoption of this standard will not have a material impact on
our results of operations or financial position.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The ASU changes
accounting for credit losses on loans receivable and debt securities from an incurred loss methodology to an expected credit loss methodology. Among other things, ASU 2016-
13 requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and
supportable forecasts. Accordingly, ASU 2016-13 requires the use of forward-looking information to form credit loss estimates. In addition, ASU 2016-13 amends the
accounting for credit losses on debt securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. The Company adopted ASU 2016-13 as of January 1, 2023. The
company’s financial assets that are subject to the new standard are predominantly accounts receivable and short-term investments classified as held-to-maturities (e.g., U.S.
Treasury obligations). The Company’s receivables consist principally of MediMobility Organ Transport customers, which are large hospitals that receive terms of 45 days or
less. U.S. Treasury obligations are rated as investment grade with maturities of less than 365 days. Given our historical experience, the short duration lifetime of these financial
assets and the short time horizon over which to consider expectations of future economic conditions, the company assessed that non-collection of the cost basis of these financial
assets is remote. The adoption of ASU 2016-13 did not materially impact the Company’s unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - Not Adopted

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging— Contracts in Entity’s
Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40). The objective of this update is to simplify the accounting for convertible preferred stock by removing the existing guidance in ASC 470-20,
Debt: Debt with Conversion and Other Options, (“ASC 470-20”), that requires entities to account for beneficial conversion features and cash conversion features in equity,
separately from the host convertible debt or preferred stock. The guidance in ASC 470-20 applies to convertible instruments for which the embedded conversion features are not
required to be bifurcated from the host contract and accounted for as derivatives. In addition, the amendments revise the scope exception from derivative accounting in ASC
815-40 for freestanding financial instruments and embedded features that are both indexed to the issuer’s own stock and classified in stockholders’ equity, by removing certain
criteria required for equity classification. These amendments are expected to result in more freestanding financial instruments qualifying for equity classification (and, therefore,
not accounted for as derivatives), as well as fewer embedded features requiring separate accounting from the host contract. This amendment also further revises the guidance in
ASU 260, Earnings per Share, to require entities to calculate diluted earnings per share (EPS) for convertible instruments by using the if-converted method. In addition, entities
must presume share settlement for purposes of calculating diluted EPS when an instrument may be settled in cash or shares. The amendments in ASU 2020-06 are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, with early adoption permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2020-06 to have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

Note 2 – Revenue

Revenue Recognition

Short Distance products are typically purchased using the Blade App and paid for principally via credit card transactions, wire, check, customer credit, and gift cards, with
payments principally collected by the Company in advance of the performance of related services. The revenue is recognized as the service is completed.

Jet products are typically purchased through our Flier Relations associates and our app and are paid for principally via checks, wires and credit card. Jet payments are typically
collected at the time of booking before the performance of the related service. The revenue is recognized as the service is completed.

MediMobility Organ Transport products are typically purchased through our medical logistics coordinators and are paid for principally via checks and wires. Payments are
generally collected after the performance of the related service in accordance with the client's payment terms. The revenue is recognized as the service is completed.
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(amounts in thousands, except share, per share data and exchange rates)

The Company initially records flight sales in its unearned revenue, deferring revenue recognition until the travel occurs. Unearned revenue from customer credit and gift card
purchases is recognized as revenue when a flight is flown or upon the expiration of the gift card. Unearned revenue from the Company’s passes is recognized ratably over the
term of the pass. For travel that has more than one flight segment, the Company deems each segment as a separate performance obligation and recognizes revenue for each
segment as travel occurs. Fees charged in association with add-on services or changes or extensions to non-refundable seats sold are considered part of the Company's passenger
performance obligation. As such, those fees are deferred at the time of collection and recognized at the time the travel is provided.

Contract liability is defined as entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the
customer. As of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company's contract liability balance was $ 7,788 and $6,709, respectively. This balance consists of unearned
revenue, prepaid monthly and annual flight passes, customer credits and gift card obligations. Unearned revenue represents principally the flight revenues received in advance of
the actual flight. Customer credits represents unearned revenue for flight reservations that typically were cancelled for good reason by the customer. The customer has one year
to use the credit as payment for a future flight with the Company. Gift cards represent prepayment of flights. The Company recognizes revenue for expired customer credits and
gift cards upon expiration.

The table below presents a roll forward of the contract liability balance:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of period $ 6,709 $ 5,976 
Additions 13,599 15,835 
Revenue recognized (12,520) (15,530)
Balance, end of period $ 7,788 $ 6,281 

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company recognized $2,686 of revenue that was included in the contract liability balance as of January 1, 2023. For the three
months ended March 31, 2022, the Company recognized $2,888 of revenue that was included in the contract liability balance as of January 1, 2022.

Certain governmental taxes are imposed on the Company's flight sales through a fee included in flight prices. The Company collects these fees and remits them to the
appropriate government agency. These fees are excluded from revenue.

The Company’s quarterly financial data is subject to seasonal fluctuations. Historically, the second and third quarter (ended on June 30 and September 30, respectively)
financial results have reflected higher Short Distance travel demand and were better than the first and fourth quarter (ended March 31 and December 31) financial results.
Historically, MediMobility Organ Transport demand has not been seasonal. Jet and Other revenue have historically been stronger in the first and fourth quarter (ended on
March 31 and December 31, respectively) given that the Company’s by-the-seat jet service has operated only between November and April.

Blade operates in three key product lines across two segments (see Note 5 - “Segment and Geographic Information” for further information on reportable segments):

Passenger segment

• Short Distance – Consisting primarily of helicopter and amphibious seaplane flights in the United States, Canada and Europe between 10 and 100 miles in distance. Flights
are available for purchase both by-the-seat and on a full aircraft charter basis.

• Jet and Other –  Consists principally of revenues from non-medical jet charter, by-the-seat jet flights between New York and South Florida, revenue from brand partners for
exposure to Blade fliers and certain ground transportation services.
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BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(amounts in thousands, except share, per share data and exchange rates)

Medical segment

• MediMobility Organ Transport – Consisting of transportation of human organs for transplant and/or the medical teams supporting these services.

Disaggregated revenue by product line and segment was as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Passenger Segment
Short Distance $ 10,425 $ 4,203 
Jet and Other(1) 8,079 9,752 
Total $ 18,504 $ 13,955 

Medical Segment
MediMobility Organ Transport(1) $ 26,767 $ 12,675 
Total $ 26,767 $ 12,675 

Total Revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 

__________
(1) Prior period amounts have been updated to conform to current period presentation.

Note 3 – Right-of-Use Asset and Operating Lease Liability

Blade’s operating leases consist of airport and heliport terminals, offices and aircraft leases that are embedded within certain capacity purchase agreements (“CPAs”). Upon
meeting certain criteria as stated in ASC 842 Leases, the lease component of a capacity purchase agreement would be accounted for as an embedded lease, with a corresponding
balance included in the operating right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and lease liability.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2023, the Company added aircraft leases that are embedded within two of our capacity purchase agreements.

One became effective in February 2023 for a three-year term ending February 14, 2026 for three aircraft (previous term was less than one year). In case of early termination by
Blade, a one-year revenue guarantee will be pro-rated to the date of the termination. In addition, Blade has the right for immediate termination with no penalty if a government
authority enacts travel restrictions.

A second agreement for seven aircraft was restated and amended in March 2023 for an additional two years for a total five-year term, ending March 31, 2028 (previous term was
for three-years ending March 31, 2025 for six aircraft). Blade has the right to terminate the agreement without cause upon 60 days’ written notice, upon such termination a one-
year flight hour guarantee will be pro-rated to the date of the termination and the operator will be entitled to retain any unapplied deposit paid by Blade at the time of such
termination, in addition, Blade has the right for immediate termination with no penalty if a government authority enacts travel restrictions.

The Company allocated the consideration in the capacity purchase agreements to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative standalone value. The non-lease
components for these agreements primarily consist of the costs associated
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(amounts in thousands, except share, per share data and exchange rates)

with flight operations. The Company determined its best estimate of the standalone value of the individual components by considering observable information from publicly
available market rates.

See Note 8, “Commitments and Contingencies”, for additional information about our capacity purchase agreements.

Balance sheet information related to the Company’s leases is presented below:

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Operating leases:
Operating right-of-use asset $ 24,092 $ 17,692 
Operating lease liability, current 4,029 3,362 
Operating lease liability, long-term 20,792 14,970 

As of March 31, 2023, included in the table above is $21,374, $2,332 and $19,693 of operating right-of-use asset, current operating lease liability, and long-term operating lease
liability, respectively, under aircraft leases that are embedded within the capacity purchase agreements. As of December 31, 2022, included in the table above is $14,916,
$1,748 and $13,705 of operating right-of-use asset, current operating lease liability, and long-term operating lease liability, respectively, under aircraft leases that are embedded
within the capacity purchase agreements.

The following provides details of the Company’s lease expense: 
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2023 2022

Lease cost:
Short-term lease cost $ 94 $ 38 
Operating lease cost 467 183 
Operating lease cost - Cost of revenue 990 — 

Total $ 1,551 $ 221 

Operating lease costs related to aircraft leases that are embedded within capacity purchase agreements are reported as part of Cost of revenue.

Other information related to leases is presented below:

March 31, 2023
Weighted-average discount rate – operating lease 9.00 %
Weighted-average remaining lease term – operating lease (in years) 6.9
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As of March 31, 2023, the expected annual minimum lease payments of the Company’s operating lease liabilities were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31
Remainder of 2023 $ 4,577 
2024 6,125 
2025 4,989 
2026 3,969 
2027 3,828 
Thereafter 10,622 
Total future minimum lease payments, undiscounted 34,110 
Less: Imputed interest for leases in excess of one year (9,289)

Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 24,821 

Note 4 – Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Option Awards

Following is a summary of stock option activities for the three months ended March 31, 2023:

Options

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Life

(years)
Intrinsic

Value
Outstanding – January 1, 2023 7,603,864 $ 0.19 $ 0.21 4.6 $ 25,795 

Granted — — — 
Exercised (300,785) 0.18 0.24 
Forfeited — — — 

Outstanding – March 31, 2023 7,303,079 $ 0.19 $ 0.21 4.3 $ 23,312 

Exercisable as of March 31, 2023 7,303,079 $ 0.19 $ 0.21 4.3 $ 23,312 

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded no stock option expense. As of March 31, 2023, there are no remaining stock options subject to
amortization.

Restricted Stock

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company granted an aggregate of 177,389 of the Company's restricted stock units to various employees, officers, directors,
consultants, and service providers under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. The restricted stock units have various vesting dates, ranging from vesting on the grant date to as late
as four years from the date of grant.

Restricted Stock Units

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested – January 1, 2023 7,466,636 $ 5.52 
Granted 177,389 3.26 
Vested (160,237) 8.09 
Forfeited (24,751) 6.49 

Non-vested – March 31, 2023 7,459,037 $ 5.41 
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For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded $3,221 and $2,098 in employee and officers restricted stock compensation expense. As of
March 31, 2023, unamortized stock-based compensation costs related to restricted share arrangements was $32,285 and will be recognized over a weighted average period of
3.3 years.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options and restricted stock units in the unaudited interim condensed consolidated statements of operations is summarized as
follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Software development $ 168 $ 275 
General and administrative(1) 2,636 1,723 
Selling and marketing 78 100
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 2,882 $ 2,098 

________
(1) For the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company includes a credit of $339 in connection with the settlement of the equity-based portion of Trinity’s contingent consideration that
was paid in 2023 in respect of 2022 results.

Note 5 – Segment and Geographic Information

Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise that engage in business activities for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) and is used in resource allocation and performance assessments. In addition, per ASC 280, Segment Reporting, paragraph 280-
10-50-11, two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single reported segment if the segments have similar economic characteristics. The Company has identified
two reporting segments - Passenger and Medical. Our CODM is our senior management team. Our senior management team regularly reviews discrete information for those
two reporting segments. The Passenger segment consists of our two product lines Short Distance and Jet and Other. The Medical segment consists of the MediMobility Organ
Transport product line. Our product lines are defined in Note 2 in the Revenue Recognition section.

The CODM evaluates the performance of the segments and allocates resources primarily based on their respective revenue, Flight Profit and Flight Margins. Flight Profit is
defined as revenue less cost of revenue. Cost of revenue consists of flight costs paid to operators of aircraft and cars, landing fees, ROU asset amortization and internal costs
incurred in generating ground transportation revenue using the Company’s owned cars. Flight Margin for a period is defined as Flight Profit for the period divided by revenue for
the same period. The CODM does not evaluate operating segments or allocate resources using asset information and, accordingly, we do not report asset information by
segment.
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The following table reflects certain financial data of the Company’s reportable segments:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Segment revenue
Passenger $ 18,504 $ 13,955 
Medical 26,767 12,675 
Total revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 

Segment Flight Profit
Passenger $ 2,812 $ 689 
Medical 4,352 2,234 
Total Flight Profit $ 7,164 $ 2,923 
Reconciling items:
All other operating costs(1) (19,991) (16,613)
Loss from operations $ (12,827) $ (13,690)

Segment net income (loss)
Passenger $ (5,118) $ (5,516)
Medical 1,637 522
Consolidated net loss from reportable segments (3,481) (4,994)
Unallocated corporate costs & software development(2) (9,346) (8,696)
Other non-operating income 2,439 2,678 
Loss before income taxes $ (10,388) $ (11,012)

Segment Flight Margin
Passenger 15.2 % 4.9 %
Medical 16.3 % 17.6 %
Total Flight Margin 15.8 % 11.0 %

March 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Goodwill
Passenger $ 26,562 $ 26,117 
Medical 13,328 13,328 
Total goodwill $ 39,890 $ 39,445 

________
(1) All other operating costs consists of direct costs of service delivery, staff, selling and marketing as well as allocated staff, general and administrative expenses.
(2) Unallocated corporate costs & software development includes costs that are not directly attributable to our reportable segments. Corporate costs also include shared costs such as finance,
accounting, tax, human resources, information technology, legal costs and costs of the development of our application.
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Geographic Information

Revenue by geography is based on where the flight’s operator is based. Long-lived assets, net includes property and equipment, net and operating right-of-use assets. Summary
financial data attributable to various geographic regions for the periods indicated is as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Revenue
United States $ 37,999 $ 24,843 
Other 7,272 1,787 
Total revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 

March 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Long-lived assets
United States $ 13,806 $ 7,195 
Other 12,731 12,534 
Total long-lived assets $ 26,537 $ 19,729 

Note 6 – Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate represents the Company’s estimated tax rate for the year based on projected income and the mix of income among the various foreign tax
jurisdictions, adjusted for discrete transactions occurring during the period. 

Income tax benefit was $196 and $0, for the three months ended March 31 2023 and 2022, respectively. The tax benefit in the 2023 period is attributable to Blade France net
profits. The difference in the tax benefit in the 2023 period compared to the 2022 period is attributable to the mix of pretax profits from foreign operations and the mix of tax
rates in those jurisdictions, while no offsetting tax benefits arising from the Company’s U.S. and Canada net operating losses, which management believes the Company will
not be able to utilize.

Note 7 – Net Loss per Common Share

Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per common
share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, plus the impact of common shares, if dilutive, resulting from the
exercise of outstanding stock options, restricted shares, and warrants.
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A reconciliation of net loss and common stock share amounts used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is presented below.
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2023 2022

Basic and dilutive loss per common share:
Net loss attributable to Blade Air Mobility, Inc. $ (10,192) $ (11,012)

Total weighted-average basic common shares outstanding 71,992,771 70,774,138 

Net loss per common share:
Basic and diluted loss per common share $ (0.14) $ (0.16)

The following table represents common stock equivalents that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and
2022 because the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Warrants to purchase shares of common stock 14,166,644 14,166,666 
Options to purchase shares of common stock 7,303,079 7,969,573 
Restricted shares of common stock 7,459,037 2,471,923 

Total potentially dilutive securities 28,928,760 24,608,162 

Note 8 – Commitments and Contingencies

Capacity Purchase Agreements

Blade has contractual relationships with various aircraft operators to provide aircraft service. Under these Capacity Purchase Agreements (“CPAs”), the Company pays the
operator contractually agreed fees (carrier costs) for operating these flights. The fees are generally based on fixed hourly rates for flight time multiplied by hours flown. Under
these CPAs, the Company is also responsible for landing fees and other costs, which are either passed through by the operator to the Company without any markup or directly
incurred by the Company.

As of March 31, 2023, the Company has a remaining unfulfilled obligation for the years ending December 31, 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028 and for each of the years
ending December 31, 2029 through 2032 under agreements with various aircraft operators to purchase flights with an aggregate value of approximately $9,244, $24,654,
$22,419, $20,727, $18,624, $18,624 and $8,124, respectively. The above remaining unfulfilled obligation includes amounts within operating lease liability related to aircraft
leases embedded within our capacity purchase agreements as discussed in Note 3 – Right-of-Use Asset and Operating Lease Liability. Blade has the right for immediate
termination of certain agreements if a government authority enacts travel restrictions, this right is applicable to unfulfilled obligation for the years ending December 31, 2023,
2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028 with an aggregate value of approximately $184, $16,530, $14,295, $12,603, $10,500 and $10,500, respectively. In addition, obligations
amounting to $11,833 and $10,500 for the years ending December 31, 2024, and for each of the years ending December 31, 2025 through 2028, respectively, could be
terminated by Blade for convenience upon 30 or 60 days’ notice with the annual minimum guarantee being pro-rated as of the termination date.

Legal and Environmental

From time to time, we may be a party to litigation that arises in the ordinary course of business. Other than described below, we do not have any pending litigation that,
separately or in the aggregate, would, in the opinion of management,
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have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. As of March 31, 2023, management believes, after considering a number of factors,
including (but not limited to) the information currently available, the views of legal counsel, the nature of contingencies to which the Company is subject and prior experience,
that the ultimate disposition of these other litigation and claims will not materially affect the Company's consolidated financial position or results of operations. The Company
records liabilities for legal and environmental claims when a loss is probable and reasonably estimable. These amounts are recorded based on the Company's assessments of the
likelihood of their eventual disposition.

In July 2022, Trinity Air Medical, LLC (“Trinity”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Blade Urban Air Mobility, Inc., received a federal grand jury subpoena seeking records
related to the provision of transplant transportation services. Trinity is cooperating with the subpoena.

Note 9 – Warrant Liabilities

Warrants — Public Warrants may only be exercised for a whole number of shares. The Public Warrants became exercisable on June 7, 2021. The Public Warrants will expire
on May 7, 2026 or earlier upon redemption or liquidation.

Redemptions of Warrants for Cash — Once the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the Public Warrants:

• in whole and not in part;
• at a price of $0.01 per warrant;
• upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder; and
• if, and only if, the reported last sale price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period

ending three business days before the Company sends the notice of redemption to each warrant holder.

Redemption of Warrants for Shares of Common Stock — Commencing ninety days after the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the outstanding warrants:

• in whole and not in part;
• at a price equal to a number of shares of common stock to be determined, based on the redemption date and the fair market value of the Company’s common stock;
• upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption;
• if, and only if, the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $10.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends,

reorganizations, recapitalizations, and the like) on the trading day prior to the date on which the Company sends the notice of redemption to the warrant holders; and
• if, and only if, there is an effective registration statement covering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants and a current prospectus relating

thereto is available throughout the 30-day period after the written notice of redemption is given.

If the Company calls the Public Warrants for redemption for cash, management will have the option to require all holders that wish to exercise the Public Warrants to do so on a
“cashless basis”, as described in the warrant agreement. The exercise price and number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants may be adjusted in
certain circumstances including in the event of a stock dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, merger, or consolidation. However, except as described below, the warrants
will not be adjusted for issuance of common stock at a price below its exercise price. Additionally, in no event will the Company be required to net-cash settle the warrants.

The Private Placement Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants underlying the Units sold in the Initial Public Offering, except that the Private Placement Warrants will be
exercisable on a cashless basis and be non-redeemable so long as they are held by the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees. If the Private Placement Warrants are held
by someone other than the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees, the Private Placement Warrants will be redeemable by the Company and exercisable by such holders
on the same basis as the Public Warrants.
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Note 10 – Fair Value Measurements

The following fair value hierarchy is used to classify assets and liabilities based on the observable inputs and unobservable inputs used in order to value the assets and liabilities:

Level 1:    Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market for an asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2:    Observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs. Examples of Level 2 inputs include quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities and quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3:    Unobservable inputs based on management’s assessment of the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

The following table presents information about the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022, and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation inputs the Company utilized to determine such fair value.

Level March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Warrant liabilities - Public Warrants 1 $ 4,217 $ 4,583 
Warrant liabilities - Private Warrants 2 2,300 2,500 
Fair value of aggregate warrant liabilities $ 6,517 $ 7,083 

The Warrants were accounted for as liabilities in accordance with ASC 815-40 and are presented within “Warrant liability” on the Company’s unaudited interim condensed
consolidated balance sheets. The warrant liabilities are measured at fair value upon assumption and on a recurring basis, with changes in fair value presented within “Change in
fair value of warrant liabilities” in the unaudited interim condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The Public Warrants are considered part of Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, as those securities are traded on an active public market. At the Closing Date and thereafter, the
Company valued the Private Warrants using Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Company used the value of the Public Warrants as an approximation of the value of the
Private Warrants as they are substantially similar to the Public Warrants, but not directly traded or quoted on an active market.

Subsequent measurement

The following table presents the changes in fair value of the warrant liabilities:

Public
Warrants

Private
Placement
Warrants

Total Warrant
Liability

Fair value as of January 1, 2023 $ 4,583 $ 2,500 $ 7,083 
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities (366) (200) (566)

Fair value as of March 31, 2023 $ 4,217 $ 2,300 $ 6,517 

Note 11 – Subsequent Events

The Company has completed an evaluation of all subsequent events through the filing of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to ensure that these unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements include appropriate disclosure of events both recognized in the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements and events
which occurred but were not recognized in the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements. The Company has concluded that no subsequent event has
occurred that requires disclosure.
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Item 2. Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial statements and the related notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our audited consolidated financial
statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

In addition to historical consolidated financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates, and beliefs.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-
looking statements can generally be identified using forward-looking terminology, including the terms “believes”, “estimates”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “seeks”, “projects”,
“intends”, “plans”, “may”, “will” or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements include all
matters that are not historical facts. They appear in several places throughout this report and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations
concerning, among other things, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies, the markets in which we operate and the development of
Electric Vertical Aircraft (“EVA”) technology. Such forward-looking statements are based on available current market material and management’s expectations, beliefs, and
forecasts concerning future events impacting us and are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are
difficult to predict and generally beyond our control. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from the results anticipated in these forward-looking
statements.

Our operations and financial results are subject to various risks and uncertainties. The following are among those factors, but are not the only factors, that could adversely affect
us and/or that may cause actual results to differ materially from such forward-looking statements:

• continued occurrence of significant losses, which we have experienced since inception;
• the impact of COVID-19 and its related effects on our results of operations, financial performance or other financial metrics;
• the markets in which we operate may fail to grow or may grow more slowly than expected;
• our ability to effectively market and sell air transportation as a substitute for conventional methods of transportation;
• changes in consumer preferences, discretionary spending and other economic conditions;
• the inability or unavailability to use or take advantage of the shift, or lack thereof, to EVA technology;
• our ability to enter new markets and offer new routes and services;
• any adverse publicity stemming from accidents involving small aircraft, helicopters or charter flights and, in particular, any accidents involving our third-party operators;
• effects of competition;
• our reliance on contractual relationships with certain transplant centers, hospitals and Organ Procurement Organizations;
• harm to our reputation and brand;
• our ability to provide high-quality customer support;
• our ability to maintain a high daily aircraft usage rate and to aggregate fliers on our by-the-seat flights;
• impact of natural disasters, outbreaks and pandemics, economic, social, weather, growth constraints, and regulatory conditions or other circumstances on metropolitan

areas and airports where we have geographic concentration;
• the effects of climate change;
• the availability of aircraft fuel;
• our ability to address system failures, defects, errors or vulnerabilities in our website, applications, backend systems or other technology systems or those of third-party

technology providers;
• interruptions or security breaches of our information technology systems;
• our placements within mobile operating systems and application marketplaces;
• our ability to protect our intellectual property rights;
• our use of open source software;
• our ability to expand and maintain our infrastructure network;
• our ability to access additional funding;
• the increase of costs and risks associated with international expansion;
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• our ability to identify, complete and successfully integrate future acquisitions;
• our ability to manage our growth;
• increases in insurance costs or reductions in insurance coverage;
• the loss of key members of our management team;
• our ability to maintain our company culture;
• effects of fluctuating financial results;
• our reliance on third-party operators to provide and operate aircraft;
• the availability of third-party aircraft operators to match demand;
• disruptions to third-party operators and providers workforce;
• increases in insurance costs or reductions in insurance coverage for our third-party aircraft operators;
• the possibility that our third-party aircraft operators may illegally, improperly or otherwise inappropriately operate our branded aircraft;
• our reliance on third-party web service providers;
• changes in our regulatory environment;
• regulatory obstacles in local governments;
• the expansion of domestic and foreign privacy and security laws;
• the expansion of environmental regulation;
• our ability to remediate any material weaknesses or maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting;
• our ability to maintain effective internal controls and disclosure controls;
• changes in fair value of our warrants;
• changes to the price of our securities;
• the possibility that our warrants may expire worthless;
• our ability to redeem outstanding warrants;
• our intention to not declare any dividends in the foreseeable future;
• the possibility that we may issue additional equity securities;
• our use of “emerging growth company” and “smaller reporting company” exemptions from disclosure requirements;
• provisions in our charter that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals;
• provisions in our charter that designate exclusive forum; and
• the other factors described elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, included under the headings “Risk Factors,”

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition” or as described in the other documents and reports we file with the SEC.

Actual results, performance or achievements may differ materially, and potentially adversely, from any forward-looking statements and the assumptions on which those
forward-looking statements are based. There can be no assurance that the data contained herein is reflective of future performance to any degree. You are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a predictor of future performance. All information set forth herein speaks only as of the date hereof and we disclaim any
intention or obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, changes in expectations, future events or otherwise.

Overview

Blade is a technology-powered, global air mobility platform committed to reducing travel friction by providing cost-effective air transportation alternatives to some of the most
congested ground routes in the U.S. and abroad. Today, we predominantly use helicopters and amphibious aircraft for our passenger routes and are also one of the largest air
medical transporters of human organs for transplant in the world. Our asset-light model, coupled with our exclusive passenger terminal infrastructure, is designed to facilitate a
seamless transition to Electric Vertical Aircraft (“EVA” or “eVTOL”), which is expected to enable lower cost air mobility to the public that is both quiet and emission-free.
Blade operates in three key product lines across two segments (see Note 5 to the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for further
information on reportable segments):
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Passenger segment

• Short Distance – Consisting primarily of helicopter and amphibious seaplane flights in the United States, Canada and Europe between 10 and 100 miles in distance. Flights
are available for purchase both by-the-seat and on a full aircraft charter basis.

• Jet and Other –  Consists principally of revenues from non-medical jet charter and by-the-seat jet flights between New York and South Florida, revenue from brand partners
for exposure to Blade fliers and certain ground transportation services.

Medical segment

• MediMobility Organ Transport – Consisting of transportation of human organs for transplant and/or the medical teams supporting these services.

Blade Europe Acquisition

On September 1, 2022, Blade acquired, through Blade Europe SAS, a wholly-owned French société par actions simplifiée subsidiary (“Blade Europe”), 100% of the share
capital and voting rights of Héli Tickets France SAS (“Héli Tickets France”), a French société par actions simplifiée, which was then renamed “Blade France SAS” (“Blade
France”) and of Helicopter Monaco SARL (“Helicopter Monaco”), a Monegasque société à responsabilité limitée, which was then renamed “Blade Monaco SARL” (“Blade
Monaco”). We refer to the three European legal entities (Blade Europe, Blade France and Blade Monaco) collectively as “Blade Europe”. These acquisitions are part of Blade’s
growth strategy of leveraging its asset-light model, technology and recognized brand to aggregate the best use cases for urban air mobility. The routes in Southern France,
Monaco, Italy and Switzerland, meet the criteria given the geography, short distances and large addressable markets. In addition these markets have connectivity to our existing
service areas where the Blade brand enjoys recognition, creating the opportunity for cross pollination between our North American and European customer base. As a result of
this acquisition and an Aircraft Operator Agreement Blade Europe entered into in connection with the acquisition, Blade gained the right to act as the exclusive air charter
broker and/or reseller of air transportation services to be operated and provided by the operator partners at pre-negotiated fixed hourly rates and with a minimum number of
annual flight hours guaranteed to the operators by Blade. The initial term of the Aircraft Operator Agreement ends on December 31, 2032 and it will automatically renew for
successive three year periods.

Seats Flown

The following table reflects the key operating metric we use to evaluate the Passenger segment:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
Seats flown – all passenger flights 28,550 18,494 

We define “Seats flown  —  all passenger flights” as the total number of seats purchased by paying passengers on all flights, whether sold by-the-seat or within a charter
arrangement. Our long-term consumer-facing strategy is primarily focused on growth in by-the-seat products, and we believe that “Seats flown — all passenger flights” is an
important indicator of our progress in executing on this growth strategy. This metric is not always directly correlated with revenue given the significant variability in the price
we charge per seat flown across our various products and routes. For products and routes sold by-the-seat, we fly significantly more passengers at a low price per seat; growth
in these areas is captured by “Seats flown — all passenger flights,” but has less impact on revenue, which is heavily influenced by the Jet and Other product lines where we
typically fly fewer passengers over long distances at a high price. We believe the “Seats flown — all passenger flights” metric is useful to investors in understanding the overall
scale of our Passenger segment and trends in the number of passengers paying to use our service.
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Recent Developments — Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 Pandemic

COVID-19, which was declared a global health pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 2020, drove the implementation of significant government-imposed
measures to prevent or reduce its spread, including travel restrictions, “shelter in place” orders, and business closures. At the onset of the pandemic, we experienced a substantial
decline in the demand for our Short Distance product line due to travel restrictions that significantly reduced the number of commercial airline passengers and office closures
that required many people to work from home, lowering commuter demand.

We began to see a recovery in Short Distance demand in Summer 2021 that has continued to date. However, future adverse developments related to the pandemic, such as the
emergence of new viral strains that are not responsive to a vaccine, a sustained or increased reduction in business travel in favor of virtual meetings, or a decrease in demand for
air travel from the public, could reduce demand for our Short Distance products and postpone our ability to launch route expansions.

Our Business Model

Blade leverages an asset-light business model: we neither own nor operate aircraft. Pilots, maintenance, hangar, insurance, and fuel are all costs borne by our network of
operators, which provide aircraft flight time to Blade at fixed hourly rates. This enables our operator partners to focus on training pilots, maintaining aircraft and flying, while
we maintain the relationship with the client from booking through flight arrival. For flights offered for sale by-the-seat, Blade schedules flights based on demand analysis and
takes the economic risk of aggregating fliers to optimize flight profitability, providing predictable margins for our operators.

We typically pre-negotiate fixed hourly rates and flight times with our aircraft operators, paying only for flights actually flown, creating a predictable and flexible cost structure.
Blade will sometimes provide guaranteed flight commitments to our aircraft operators.

Blade’s proprietary “customer-to-cockpit” technology stack enables us to manage fliers and organ transports across numerous simultaneous flights, coordinating multiple
operators flying between terminals across our route network. We believe that this technology, which provides us with enhanced logistics capabilities and information from our
fliers signaling their interest in new routes, will enable us to continue to scale our business. This technology stack was built with future growth in mind and is designed to allow
our platform to be easily scaled to accommodate, among other things, rapid increases in flier volume, new routes, new operators, broader flight schedules, international
expansion, next-generation verticraft and ancillary services (e.g., last/first-mile ground connections, trip cancellation insurance, baggage delivery) through our mobile apps,
website and cloud-based tools.

Our asset-light business model was developed to be scalable and profitable using conventional aircraft today while enabling a seamless transition to EVA, once they are
certified for public use. We intend to leverage the expected lower operating costs of EVA versus helicopters to reduce the consumer’s price for our flights. Additionally, we
expect the reduced noise footprint and zero carbon emission characteristics of EVA to allow for the development of new, vertical landing infrastructure (“vertiports”) in our
existing and new markets. In the interim, we purchase offsets to counteract the carbon emissions generated by our urban air mobility services.

Factors Affecting our Performance

Ability to attract and retain fliers in our Short Distance product line

Our success depends in part on our ability to cost-effectively attract new fliers, retain existing fliers and increase utilization of our services by current fliers. We plan to continue
making significant investments and implementing strategic initiatives in order to attract new fliers, such as flier acquisition campaigns and the launching of new scheduled
routes. These investments and initiatives may not be effective in generating sales growth or profits. Moreover, if fliers do not perceive our urban air mobility services to be
reliable, safe, and cost-effective, or if we fail to offer new and relevant services and features on our platform, we may not be able to attract or retain fliers or increase their
utilization of our platform.
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Ability to attract and retain customers in our MediMobility Organ Transport and Jet and Other product line

Our MediMobility Organ Transport product line primarily serves transplant centers, organ procurement organizations and hospitals. Transportation for the hearts, lungs and
livers that make up the vast majority of this product line is typically requested only hours before the required departure time. Our ability to successfully fulfill these requests
with consistent pricing on the requested aircraft type, be it jet, turboprop or helicopter, is the primary metric by which MediMobility Organ Transport Customers evaluate our
performance.

We utilize the same aircraft and aircraft operators in our Passenger segment. Historically, the combination of our Passenger and MediMobility Organ Transport demand, has
been enough to incentivize operators to provide dedicated aircraft and crews for our use. However, there is no guarantee that we will continue to be able to secure dedicated
aircraft at favorable rates, particularly given significant increases in demand for private jet aircraft in the United States in recent years. Recent increased demand for private jets
has led to increased charter costs and more limited availability in the spot jet charter market, but has not limited our ability to maintain or increase our access to dedicated jet
aircraft at fixed prices.

Impact of inflation to our business

We generally pay a fixed hourly rate to our third-party operators, based on flight hours flown. These rates are susceptible to inflation and are typically renegotiated on a yearly
basis, though some multi-year contracts have fixed rate increases. Some contracts with operators allow for pass-through of fuel price increases above a set threshold. We have
historically passed through cost inflation to customers and most contracts with our MediMobility Organ Transport Customers automatically pass through any fuel surcharges,
but there is no guarantee this will continue in the future.

Passenger Expansion into New Geographic Markets

Our Passenger segment growth plan is focused on dense urban areas, primarily those with existing air transportation infrastructure that are facing increasing ground congestion.
In these areas, our urban air mobility services can provide the most time savings for our fliers, and given the short distances involved, costs for our services can be comparable
to luxury, private car services. In addition, EVA may be commercially viable sooner in these markets given that battery technology constraints may limit the range of early
models. Large urban markets with existing heliport infrastructure should be able to accommodate EVA while other cities may need several years to permit and build such
infrastructure. The number of potential fliers using our urban air mobility services in any market cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty, and we cannot provide
assurance that we will be able to operate in a profitable manner in any of our current or targeted future markets.

Growth of our business will require significant investments in our infrastructure, technology, and marketing and sales efforts. Historically, cash flow from operations has not
been sufficient to support these needs. If our business does not generate the level of available cash flow required to support these investments, our results of operations will be
negatively affected. Further, our ability to effectively manage growth and expansion of our operations will also require us to enhance our operational systems, internal controls
and infrastructure, human resources policies, and reporting systems. These enhancements will require significant capital expenditures and allocation of valuable management
and employee resources.

Development, approval and acceptance of EVA for commercial service

We intend to leverage the expected lower operating costs of EVA versus helicopters to reduce the price for our flights. Additionally, we expect the reduced noise footprint and
zero carbon emission characteristics of EVA to allow for the development of new, vertiports in our existing and new markets. However, manufacturers, individual operators that
will purchase EVA, and pilots must receive requisite approvals from federal transportation authorities before EVA can fly passengers. No EVA aircraft are currently certified by
the FAA for commercial operations in the United States, and there is no assurance that research and development will result in government certified aircraft that are market-
viable or commercially successful in a timely manner, or at all.

We believe that Blade is well positioned to introduce EVA into commercial service, once available, for a number of reasons. In our Passenger segment, we believe our existing
Short Distance routes will be compatible with EVA, which are initially expected to have a limited range, and our existing terminal space will accommodate EVA. Additionally,
we believe that the last-mile transports we perform using helicopters or ground vehicles in our Medical segment may be compatible with EVA, reducing organ transport time
and cost for our customers. Blade’s unit economics are designed to be profitable using either conventional helicopters or EVA, even if early EVA do not deliver significant cost
savings relative

25



Table of Contents

to helicopters. Moreover, Blade’s asset-light business model and technology platform are operator and aircraft agnostic, enabling a seamless transition to EVA.

Seasonality

Passenger segment

Historically, we have experienced significant seasonality in our Short Distance product line with flight volume peaking during the quarters ended June 30 (Q2) and September
30 (Q3) of each fiscal year due to the busy summer travel season, with lower volume during the quarters ended March 31 (Q1) and December 31 (Q4).

Jet and Other revenue has historically been stronger in the first and fourth quarter (Q1 and Q4) given that our by-the-seat jet service has historically operated only between
November and April.

Medical segment

Historically, MediMobility Organ Transport demand has not been seasonal.

Key Components of the Company’s Results of Operations

Revenue

Short Distance products are typically purchased using the Blade App and paid for principally via credit card transactions, wire, check, customer credit, and gift cards, with
payments principally collected by the Company in advance of the performance of related services. The revenue is recognized as the service is completed.

Jet products are typically purchased through our Flier Relations associates and our app and are paid for principally via checks, wires and credit card. Jet payments are typically
collected at the time of booking before the performance of the related service. The revenue is recognized as the service is completed.

MediMobility Organ Transport products are typically purchased through our medical logistics coordinators and are paid for principally via checks and wires. Payments are
generally collected after the performance of the related service in accordance with the client's payment terms. The revenue is recognized as the service is completed.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists of flight costs paid to operators of aircraft and cars, landing fees, ROU asset amortization and internal costs incurred in generating ground transportation
revenue using the Company's owned cars.

Software Development

Software development expenses consist primarily of staff costs and stock-based compensation costs. Software development costs are expensed as incurred.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses principally include staff costs including stock-based compensation, depreciation and amortization, directors and officers insurance costs,
professional fees, credit card processing fees and establishment costs.

Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of advertising costs, staff costs including stock-based compensation, marketing expenses, sales commissions and promotion
costs. The trend and timing of our brand marketing expenses will depend in part on the timing of our expansion into new markets and other marketing campaigns.
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Results of Operations

The following table presents our unaudited interim condensed consolidated statements of operations for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022
(in thousands)

Revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 

Operating expenses
Cost of revenue 38,107 23,707 
Software development 1,123 835 
General and administrative 16,257 13,978 
Selling and marketing 2,611 1,800 

Total operating expenses 58,098 40,320 

Loss from operations (12,827) (13,690)

Other non-operating income (expense)
Interest income, net 1,954 264 
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities 566 2,550 
Realized loss from sales of short-term investments (81) (136)

Total other non-operating income 2,439 2,678 

Loss before income taxes (10,388) (11,012)

Income tax benefit (196) — 

Net loss $ (10,192) $ (11,012)

Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

Revenue

Disaggregated revenue by product line was as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022 % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Product Line:
Short Distance $ 10,425 $ 4,203 148 %
Jet and Other(1) 8,079 9,752 (17) %
MediMobility Organ Transport(1) 26,767 12,675 111 %
Total Revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 70 %

__________
(1) Prior period amounts have been updated to conform to current period presentation.

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, revenue increased by $18.6 million or 70%, from $26.6 million in 2022 to $45.3 million in 2023.
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Short Distance revenue increased by $6.2 million in 2023, an increase of 148%, from $4.2 million in 2022 to $10.4 million in 2023. Growth in Short Distance was driven by the
acquisition of Blade Europe in September 2022 and increased passenger volumes for Blade Canada and in our New York by-the-seat airport transfer products.

Jet and Other revenue decreased by $1.7 million in 2023, a decrease of (17)%, from $9.8 million in 2022 to $8.1 million in 2023. The decrease was driven by lower flight
volumes and a lower average price per trip.

MediMobility Organ Transport revenue increased by $14.1 million in 2023, an increase of 111% from $12.7 million in 2022 to $26.8 million in 2023. Growth in MediMobility
Organ Transport was driven by the addition of new hospital clients and growth within existing clients, both in terms of trip volume and average price per trip as hospitals
accepted more organs for transplant involving longer travel distances.

Cost of Revenue

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022 % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Cost of revenue $ 38,107 $ 23,707 61 %
Percentage of revenue 84 % 89 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, cost of revenue increased by $14.4 million, or 61%, from $23.7 million during 2022 to $38.1 million in 2023 driven by
increased flight volume and an increase in the average price per trip.

Cost of revenue as a percentage of revenues decreased by 5 percentage points from 89% to 84%. This change is attributable primarily to (i) higher passenger utilization at Blade
Canada in the current year period, compared with the three months ended March 31, 2022 which was negatively impacted by the COVID-19 Omicron variant; and (ii) the
acquisition of Blade Europe, which operates at a lower cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue compared with our Short Distance and Medical products.

Software Development
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2023 2022 % Change

(in thousands, except percentages)
Software development $ 1,123 835 34 %

Percentage of revenue 2 % 3 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, software development costs increased by $0.3 million, or 34%, from $0.8 million during 2022 to $1.1 million in 2023,
attributable primarily to a $0.3 million increase in consulting costs related to improvements to our software following our expansion to Europe and Canada.

General and Administrative

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022 % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

General and administrative $ 16,257 $ 13,978 16 %
Percentage of revenue 36 % 52 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, general and administrative expense increased by $2.3 million, or 16%, from $14.0 million during 2022 to $16.3 million
in 2023.
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The primary drivers of the net increase were: (i) a $1.9 million increase in staff costs attributable to new hires in order to support our significant growth, both organically and
through our acquisition of Blade Europe (September 2022); (ii) a $0.9 million increase in stock-based compensation costs; (iii) a $0.6 million increase for accruals related to our
short term incentive plan for the year 2023; (iv) a $0.5 million increase in intangibles amortization costs as a result of our acquisition of Blade Europe, which did not exist in the
prior year period; (v) a $0.4 million increase in rent and lease costs attributable to new leases; and (vi) a $0.9 million increase across other various general and administrative
items in line with the company’s growth and geographical expansion; those increases were partially offset by a $2.2 million decrease in non-recurring legal and M&A
transaction fees incurred in the prior year period and a $0.8 million decrease in other recurring corporate costs.

Selling and Marketing

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022 % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Selling and marketing $ 2,611 $ 1,800 45 %
Percentage of revenue 6 % 7 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, selling and marketing expense increased by $0.8 million, or 45%, from $1.8 million during 2022 to $2.6 million in 2023.
The increase is attributable primarily to: (i) a $0.3 million increase in sales commissions attributable to MediMobility Organ Transport revenue growth from new clients, and to
Blade Europe (which was acquired after prior year period) where certain hotels earn commissions for facilitating transactions; and (ii) a $0.3 million increase in staff costs due
to increased headcount.

Other non-operating income (expense)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2022 % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Interest income, net $ 1,954 $ 264 
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities 566 2,550 
Realized loss from sales of short-term investments (81) (136)

Total other non-operating income $ 2,439 $ 2,678 (9)%

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, other non-operating income consisted of: (i) $2.0 million interest income, net of interest expense attributable to higher interest rates
on our short-term investments and our money market funds in the current year period; (ii) $0.6 million non-cash income due to fair value revaluation of warrant liabilities as the
value of the warrant liabilities fluctuates with the warrants’ market price; and (iii) $0.1 million realized loss from the sales of short-term investments during the quarter.
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Segment Results of Operations

We operate our business as two reportable segments - Passenger and Medical. For additional information about our segments, see Note 5 - “Segment and Geographic
Information” in the notes to the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Segment Revenue, Segment Flight Profit and Segment Flight Margin

The following table presents our segment results for the periods indicated (in thousands, except percentages):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2023 2022 % Change

Segment Revenue
Passenger $ 18,504 $ 13,955 33 %
Medical 26,767 12,675 111 %
Total revenue $ 45,271 $ 26,630 70 %

Segment Flight Profit
Passenger $ 2,812 $ 689 308 %
Medical 4,352 2,234 95 %
Total Flight Profit $ 7,164 $ 2,923 145 %

Segment Flight Margin
Passenger 15.2 % 4.9 %
Medical 16.3 % 17.6 %
Total Flight Margin 15.8 % 11.0 %

Passenger segment

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, Passenger revenue increased by $4.5 million or 33%, from $14.0 million in 2022 to $18.5 million in 2023. The increase
was attributable to a $6.2 million increase in Short Distance offset by a decrease of $1.7 million in Jet and Other. Refer to the disaggregated revenue discussion above under “—
Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022—Revenue” for more details.
Passenger Flight Profit increased by $2.1 million or 308% for the three months ended March 31, 2023, from $0.7 million in the same period of 2022 to $2.8 million in 2023.
The increase was attributable primarily to the acquisition of Blade Europe in September 2022, which was not included in the prior year period and improvement at Blade
Canada, partially offset by a lower profit contribution from our seasonal jet services.

Passenger Flight Margin increased from 4.9% in the three months ended March 31, 2022 to 15.2% in the same period in 2023. The increase was attributable primarily to: (i)
Blade Canada moving to positive margin in 2023, due to higher passenger utilization, from negative margin in the three months ended March 31, 2022, which was negatively
impacted by the COVID-19 Omicron variant; and (ii) the acquisition of Blade Europe, which operates at higher flight margins than our company average; partially offset by a
negative margin impact driven by lower utilization in our seasonal jet service.

Medical segment

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, Medical revenue increased by $14.1 million or 111%, from $12.7 million in 2022 to $26.8 million in 2023. Refer to the
disaggregated revenue discussion above under “—Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022—Revenue” for more details.

Medical Flight Profit increased by $2.1 million or 95% for the three months ended March 31, 2023, from $2.2 million in the same period of 2022 to $4.4 million in 2023. The
increase was attributable primarily to increased revenue from new and existing clients.

30



Table of Contents

Medical Flight Margin decreased from 17.6% in the three months ended March 31, 2022 to 16.3% in the same period in 2023. The decrease was attributable primarily to faster
than expected acquisition of new clients and faster than expected growth within existing clients, which necessitated greater use of non-dedicated aircraft at lower flight margins.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA

Segment Adjusted EBITDA is defined as segment net income (loss) excluding non-cash items or certain transactions that are not indicative of ongoing Company operating
performance and/or items that management does not believe are reflective of our ongoing core operations.

Three Months Ended March 31,
2023 2022 % Change

Segment net income (loss)
Passenger $ (5,118) $ (5,516) 7 %
Medical 1,637 522 214 %
Total segment net loss $ (3,481) $ (4,994) 30 %

Segment Adjusted EBITDA(1)
Passenger $ (3,055) $ (2,609) (17) %
Medical 1,880 951 98 %
Total segment Adjusted EBITDA $ (1,175) $ (1,658) 29 %

__________
(1) See section titled “Reconciliations of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for more information and reconciliations to the most directly
comparable GAAP financial measure.

Passenger segment

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, Passenger net loss decreased by $0.4 million or 7%, from $(5.5) million in 2022 to $(5.1) million in 2023. The decrease
is attributable primarily to a $2.1 million increase in Flight Profit, driven by the acquisition of Blade Europe and improved Flight Profit for Blade Canada, partially offset by
increased fixed costs related to the acquisition of Blade Europe, which operated at a net loss during the quarter due to seasonably low Flight Profit that did not cover fixed costs
during this period, as expected. Increase in staff costs (partially due to the 2023 short term incentive plan) and in marketing costs were fully offset by decrease in professional
fees (due to less legal and M&A fees in the current year period).

Passenger Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $0.4 million or (17)% from $(2.6) million in 2022 to $(3.1) million in 2023. The decrease is attributable to a $2.1 million increase in
Flight Profit, driven by the acquisition of Blade Europe and improved Flight Profit for Blade Canada, which was more than offset by: (i) increased fixed costs related to the
acquisition of Blade Europe which operated at a net loss during the quarter due to seasonably low Flight Profit that did not cover fixed costs during this period, as expected; (ii)
increased staff costs, partially due to the 2023 short term incentive plan; and (iii) increased marketing costs.
Medical segment

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, Medical net income increased by $1.1 million or 214%, from $0.5 million in 2022 to $1.6 million in 2023. The increase
is attributable to a $2.1 million increase in Flight Profit due to higher revenue with the addition of new clients, growth within existing clients and organ transplant market growth,
partially offset by a $1.0 million increase in fixed costs, primarily staff costs.

Medical Adjusted EBITDA increased by $0.9 million or 98%, from $1.0 million in 2022 to $1.9 million in 2023. The increase is attributable to $2.1 million increase in Flight
Profit due to higher revenue with the addition of new clients, growth within existing clients and organ transplant market growth, partially offset by a $1.1 million increase in
fixed costs excluding one time transactions, amortization and shares based compensation.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Certain non-GAAP measures included in this segment results of operations review have been derived from amounts calculated in accordance with GAAP but are not themselves
GAAP measures. Blade believes that the non-GAAP measure discussed below,
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viewed in addition to and not in lieu of our reported U.S. GAAP results, provide useful information to investors by providing a more focused measure of operating results,
enhance the overall understanding of past financial performance and future prospects, and allow for greater transparency with respect to key metrics used by management in its
financial and operational decision making. The non-GAAP measure presented herein may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This
includes Segment Adjusted EBITDA, which we define, explain the use of and reconcile to the nearest GAAP financial measure below.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA

Segment Adjusted EBITDA is defined as segment net income (loss) excluding non-cash items or certain transactions that are not indicative of ongoing Company operating
performance and / or items that management does not believe are reflective of our ongoing core operations (as shown in the table below).

Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 Three Months Ended March 31, 2022
Passenger Medical Passenger Medical

Segment net income (loss) $ (5,118) $ 1,637 $ (5,516) $ 522 

Reconciling items:
Depreciation and amortization 1,134 466 734 376 
Stock-based compensation 360 116 426 53 
Legal and regulatory advocacy fees(1) 423 — 1,747 — 
Executive severance costs 146 — — — 
Contingent consideration compensation (earn-out)(2) — (339) — — 
Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ (3,055) $ 1,880 $ (2,609) $ 951 

__________
(1) Represents certain legal and regulatory advocacy fees for specific matters (primarily the proposed restrictions at East Hampton Airport and the potential operational restrictions on large jet
aircraft at Westchester Airport) that we do not consider representative of legal and regulatory advocacy costs that we will incur from time to time in the ordinary course of our business.
(2) Represents a credit recorded in connection with the settlement of the equity-based portion of Trinity's contingent consideration that was paid in 2023 in respect of 2022 results.
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Quarterly Disaggregated Revenue

The following table sets forth our unaudited quarterly disaggregated revenue by product line for each of the eight quarters leading up to the period ended March 31, 2023. These
unaudited quarterly disaggregated revenue by product line have been prepared on the same basis as our unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2023
December 31,

2022
September 30,

2022
June 30,

2022
(in thousands)

Passenger Segment
Short Distance $ 10,425 $ 9,418 $ 20,402 $ 10,963 
Jet and Other 8,079 7,081 5,101 7,421 
Total $ 18,504 $ 16,499 $ 25,503 $ 18,384 

Medical Segment
MediMobility Organ Transport $ 26,767 $ 21,636 $ 20,219 $ 17,249 
Total $ 26,767 $ 21,636 $ 20,219 $ 17,249 

Total Revenue $ 45,271 $ 38,135 $ 45,722 $ 35,633 

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
September 30,

2021
June 30,

2021
(in thousands)

Passenger Segment
Short Distance $ 4,203 $ 6,255 $ 13,403 $ 5,798 
Jet and Other(1) 9,752 8,541 4,668 5,603 
Total $ 13,955 $ 14,796 $ 18,071 $ 11,401 

Medical Segment
MediMobility Organ Transport(1) $ 12,675 $ 9,822 $ 2,245 $ 1,550 
Total $ 12,675 $ 9,822 $ 2,245 $ 1,550 

Total Revenue $ 26,630 $ 24,618 $ 20,316 $ 12,951 

__________
(1) Prior period amounts have been updated to conform to current period presentation.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

On May 7, 2021 the Company raised $333.3 million in net proceeds upon the consummation of the merger with Experience Investment Corp. (“EIC”) and the sale of common
stock through a private investment in public equity (“PIPE”) financing. As of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, we had total liquidity of $176.9 million and $194.0
million, respectively, consisting of cash and cash equivalents of $41.7 million and $43.3 million, respectively, and short-term investments of $135.2 million and $150.7 million,
respectively. In addition, as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, we had restricted cash of $2.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively. As of March 31, 2023, $135.2
million of short-term investments consisted of securities that are traded in highly liquid markets.
With $176.9 million of total liquid funds as of March 31, 2023, we anticipate that we have sufficient funds to meet our current operational needs for at least the next 12 months
from the date of filing this Quarterly Report.
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Liquidity Requirements

As of March 31, 2023, the Company had net working capital of $186.0 million, zero debt, cash and cash equivalents of $41.7 million and short-term investments of $135.2
million. The Company had net losses of $10.2 million and $11.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

In the course of our business, we have certain contractual relationships with third-party aircraft operators pursuant to which we may be contingently required to make payments
in the future. As of March 31, 2023, we had commitments to purchase flights from various aircraft operators with aggregate minimum flight purchase guarantees of $9.2 million
and $24.7 million for the years ending December 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively, $0.2 million and $16.5 million, respectively, of which may be cancelled by us immediately if
a government authority enacts travel restrictions and nil and $11.8 million, respectively, of which could be terminated by Blade for convenience upon 30 or 60 days’ notice with
the annual minimum guarantee being pro-rated as of the termination date. See “—Capacity Purchase Agreements” within Note 8 to the unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information and for information about future periods. Additionally, the Company has operating lease obligations related to real
estate leases with expected annual minimum lease payments of $1.5 million and $1.4 million for the years ending December 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively. See Note 3
“Right-of-Use Asset and Operating Lease Liability” to the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information and for information about
future periods.

We expect to incur net losses in the short term, as we continue to execute our strategic initiatives. Based on our current liquidity, we believe that no additional capital will be
needed to execute our current business plan over the next 12 months. Our longer term liquidity requirement will depend on many factors including the pace of our expansion
into new markets, our ability to attract and retain customers for our existing products, capital expenditures and acquisitions.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2023 2022
(in thousands, except percentages)

Net cash used in operating activities $ (16,855) $ (10,065)
Net cash provided by investing activities 16,275 10,997 
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (27) 16 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash balances 3 3 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (604) 951 

Cash Used In Operating Activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash used in operating activities was $16.9 million, primarily driven by $9.5 million of cash used for working capital
requirements and a net loss of $10.2 million, adjusted for non-cash items consisting of income from change in fair value of warrant liabilities of $0.6 million, stock-based
compensation expense of $3.2 million, depreciation and amortization of $1.7 million, realized loss of $0.1 million from the sale of short-term investments, $1.4 million non-
cash accretion of interest income on held-to-maturity securities and deferred tax benefit of $0.2 million. The $9.5 million of cash used for working capital requirements was
primarily driven by an increase in accounts receivable of $5.6 million (attributable to the rapid revenue growth in MediMobility Organ Transport), an increase in prepaid
expenses and other current assets of $1.6 million (driven by prepayments to operators in connection with capacity purchase agreements) and a decrease in accounts payable and
accrued expenses of $3.4 million (driven by the payment of the Trinity contingent consideration compensation and the 2022 short-term incentive plan), partially offset by an
increase in deferred revenue of $1.1 million (driven by client prepayments).

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, net cash used in operating activities was $10.1 million, primarily driven by a $0.1 million cash benefit from working capital
requirements and a net loss of $11.0 million, adjusted for non-cash items consisting of income from change in fair value of warrant liabilities of $2.6 million, stock-based
compensation expense of $2.1 million and depreciation and amortization of $1.1 million. The cash benefit from working capital requirements was primarily driven by increases
in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $2.6 million and deferred revenue of $0.3 million, partially offset by increases in accounts receivable of $0.5 million, other non-
current assets of $0.6 million and prepaid expenses and other current assets of $1.7 million.
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Cash Provided by Investing Activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash provided by investing activities was $16.3 million, driven by $16.0 million of proceeds from the sales of other short-term
investments, $131.2 million of proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investments, partially offset by $130.1 million in purchases of held-to-maturity investments, $0.1
million in purchases of other short-term investments and $0.6 million in purchases of property and equipment (consisting of leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures and
vehicles).

For the three month ended March 31, 2022, net cash provided by investing activities was $11.0 million, driven by $11.7 million of proceeds from the sales of other short-term
investments, partially offset by $0.4 million in purchases of property and equipment and $0.3 million in purchases of other short-term investments.

Cash (Used In) Provided by Financing Activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash used in financing activities was $27.0 thousand, primarily reflecting $0.1 million cash paid for payroll tax payments made
on behalf of employees in exchange for shares withheld by the Company (“net share settlement”), partially offset by $54.0 thousand of proceeds from the exercise of stock
options.

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, net cash provided by financing activities was $16.0 thousand, primarily reflecting proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

This discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations is based on the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, or U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported periods. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions the Company believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

For information on the Company’s significant accounting policies and estimates refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022. There have
been no material changes to these policies and estimates as of March 31, 2023.

Item 3. Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk

There have been no material changes in market risk from the information provided in "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) ). Based on their evaluation of our
disclosure controls and procedures, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of
March 31, 2023, to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (a) recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (b) accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

We determined that our internal control over financial reporting had the following material weaknesses:

• Management’s evaluation of the design effectiveness of internal controls to prevent or detect material misstatements or omissions has identified a large number of control
deficiencies across all business processes
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including information technology (“IT”) general controls related to financially relevant IT applications. Although these deficiencies are not individually material in
nature, in aggregate they constitute a material weakness; and

• The Company has not developed a formal framework that enables management to assess the operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting
including IT general controls related to financially relevant IT applications, specifically lacking evidential matter to support:

• Management’s conclusion that controls tests were appropriately planned and performed to adequately assess the operating effectiveness of the controls; and
▪ That the results of the controls tests were appropriately considered.

Management has concluded that these deficiencies may impact the Company’s financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis and represent a material weakness in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Because disclosure controls and procedures include those components of internal control over financial reporting that provide reasonable assurances that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, management also determined that its disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective as a result of the above-mentioned material weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting.

Notwithstanding these material weaknesses, management has concluded that the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements included in this quarterly report
on Form 10-Q present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with GAAP.

Management’s Plans for Remediation

The Company is remediating these material weaknesses as efficiently and effectively as possible, with the implementation in Q4 2022 of SOX compliance software to assist in
the overall evaluation and documentation of the design and operating effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting. This software is being used:

• To document specific remediation plans to address all identified key control design gaps and / or weaknesses and track implementation progress of these remediation
plans; and

• To help ensure appropriate evidential matter is available to support management’s conclusion that controls tests were appropriately planned and performed to adequately
assess the operating effectiveness of the controls and that the results of the controls tests were appropriately considered.

These plans are subject to ongoing review by senior management with Audit Committee oversight. As we continue to evaluate and work to improve our internal control over
financial reporting, management may implement additional measures to address the material weaknesses or modify the remediation plan described above and will continue to
review and make necessary changes to the overall design of our internal controls over financial reporting. The Company expects to complete the required remedial action during
2023.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the specific remediation steps discussed above, there were no other changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15(d)-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting in the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2023.

Limitations on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

An internal control system over financial reporting has inherent limitations and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce,
though not eliminate, this risk.

36



Table of Contents

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

There have been no material changes to our legal proceedings as previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described under “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022. These risks could materially
affect our business, results of operations or financial condition, cause the trading price of our common stock to decline materially or cause our actual results to differ materially
from those expected or those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by, or on behalf of, the Company. These risks are not exclusive, and additional risks to which
we are subject include, but are not limited to, the factors mentioned under “Forward-Looking Statements” and the risks of our businesses described elsewhere in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

On March 28, 2023, pursuant to the terms of a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated as of September 2, 2021, by and among Blade Urban Air
Mobility, Inc. (“BUAM”), our wholly owned subsidiary, and the other parties thereto, pursuant to which BUAM acquired Trinity Air Medical, Inc., and a related letter
agreement, dated February 23, 2023, by and among BUAM and certain of the other parties to the Purchase Agreement, we issued an aggregate of 384,756 shares in a private
placement exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), pursuant to Rule 4(a)(2) thereunder. The shares were
issued to two former stockholders of Trinity Air Medical, Inc. in settlement of the equity-based portion of contingent consideration that was owed to them pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement in respect of certain fiscal year 2022 results.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other information

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2022, by and among Blade Urban Air Mobility, Inc. and the Sellers party thereto
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Blade Air Mobility, Inc.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Blade Air Mobility, Inc.
10.1 Nomination Rights Agreement, dated March 27, 2023, by and between the Company and RB Lift LLC
31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a), as adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a), as adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002
32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of

2002
32.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of

2002
101.INS* Interactive Data Files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T formatted in Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language (“Inline XBRL”)
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
_______________________________

* Filed herewith
(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of our Form 8-K (file number 001-39046) filed on May 19, 2022.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Form 8-K (file number 001-39046) filed on May 13, 2021.
(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Form 8-K (file number 001-39046) filed on May 13, 2021.
(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K (file number 001-39046) filed on March 30, 2023.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

BLADE AIR MOBILITY, INC.

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ Robert S. Wiesenthal
Name: Robert S. Wiesenthal

Title:
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ William A. Heyburn
Name: William A. Heyburn

Title:
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ Amir M. Cohen
Name: Amir M. Cohen

Title:
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 AND 15d-14

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Robert S. Wiesenthal, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Blade Air Mobility, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ Robert S. Wiesenthal

Name: Robert S. Wiesenthal

Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 AND 15d-14

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, William A. Heyburn, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Blade Air Mobility, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ William A. Heyburn

Name: William A. Heyburn

Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Blade Air Mobility, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2023, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Robert S. Wiesenthal, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by §906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as
of and for the period covered by the Report.

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ Robert S. Wiesenthal
Name: Robert S. Wiesenthal

Title:
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Blade Air Mobility, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2023, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, William A. Heyburn, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by §906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as
of and for the period covered by the Report.

Date: May 11, 2023 By: /s/ William A. Heyburn
Name: William A. Heyburn

Title:
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)


